
WHITE LAKE TOWNSHIP 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

 

REPORT OF THE  
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT  

 
 
TO:  Zoning Board of Appeals 
 
FROM: Justin Quagliata, Staff Planner 
 
DATE: January 28, 2021 
 
 
 
Agenda item: 6a 
 
 
Appeal Date: January 28, 2021 (Tabled from December 17, 2020) 
  
 
Applicant:  Robert Snapp 
  
   
Address:  3960 Woodmere Drive 
   Waterford, MI 48329 
 
   
Zoning:  R1-D Single Family Residential 
 
 
Location: 8834 Arlington Road 
 White Lake, MI 48386 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Property Description   
 
The approximately 0.158-acre (6,980 square feet) parcel identified as 8834 Arlington 
Road is located on Pontiac Lake and zoned R1-D (Single Family Residential).  The 
public sanitary sewer system is available to serve the site. 
 
Applicant’s Proposal 
 
Robert Snapp, the applicant, is proposing to demolish the existing 975 square foot house 
and construct a new house. 
 
Planner’s Report 
 
The existing house was built in 1938 and is nonconforming because it does not meet the 
west side yard setback.  A minimum 10-foot side yard setback is required in the R1-D 
zoning district.  The parcel is also nonconforming due to a 5,020 square foot deficiency 
in lot area and a 30-foot deficiency in lot width (50 feet in width at the front lot line); in 
the R1-D zoning district the minimum lot size requirement is 12,000 square feet and the 
minimum lot width requirement is 80 feet. 
 
The applicant is proposing to demolish the existing house to construct a 3,389(?) square 
foot two-story house with an attached two-car garage.  The proposed house would be 
located seven feet from the west property line and 8.5 feet from the east property line; 
therefore, a three-foot variance is being requested to encroach into the west side yard 
setback and a 1.5-foot variance is being requested to encroach into the east side yard 
setback.  Additionally, the proposed lot coverage exceeds 20%.  However, the revised 
survey was not submitted, so staff was not able to ascertain the requested variance for lot 
coverage.  The Applicant can explain their lot coverage request and why the revised 
survey wasn’t provided at the meeting. 
 
The requested variances are listed in the following table. 
 

Variance # Ordinance 
Section Subject Standard Requested 

Variance Result 

1 Article 3.1.6.E Side yard 
setback 10 feet 3 feet (west) 

1.5 feet (east) 
7 feet (west) 
8.5 feet (east) 

2 Article 3.1.6.E Maximum lot 
coverage 

20% (1,396 
square feet) ? ? 

3 Article 3.1.6.E Minimum lot 
size 

12,000 
square feet 5,020 square feet 6,980 square 

feet 

4 Article 3.1.6.E Minimum lot 
width 80 feet 30 feet 50 feet 

 
 
 



Zoning Board of Appeals Options: 
 
Approval:  I move to approve the variances requested by Robert Snapp from Article 
3.1.6.E of the Zoning Ordinance for Parcel Number 12-13-176-002, identified as 8834 
Arlington Road, in order to construct a new house that would exceed the allowed lot 
coverage by     % and encroach 3 feet into the required west side yard setback and 1.5 feet 
into the required east side yard setback.  A 30-foot variance from the required lot width 
and 5,020 square foot variance from the required lot size are also granted from Article 
3.1.6.E.  This approval will have the following conditions: 
 
• The Applicant shall obtain all necessary permits from the White Lake Township 

Building Department. 
 

• In no event shall the projection of the roof overhang be closer than five feet to the 
west side lot line. 

 
 
Denial:  I move to deny the variances requested by Robert Snapp for Parcel Number 
12-13-176-002, identified as 8834 Arlington Road, due to the following reason(s): 
 
 
Table:  I move to table the variance requests of Robert Snapp for Parcel Number 12-13-
176-002, identified as 8834 Arlington Road, to consider comments stated during this 
public hearing. 
 
 
Attachments: 
 
1. Variance application dated November 16, 2020. 
2. Applicant’s written statement dated November 23, 2020. 
3. Letter of denial from the Building Department dated November 9, 2020. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 





1

Justin Quagliata

From: Justin Quagliata

Sent: Monday, November 23, 2020 3:10 PM

To: 'Marianne'

Subject: RE: 8834 Arlington - Variance Mtg.

Marianne, 

 

Here is the ordinance link: 

 

http://www.whitelaketwp.com/Portals/1082/Docs/2019/Clearzoning%20Ordinance%2012-17-2018.pdf 

 

Justin 

 

Justin Quagliata 

Staff Planner 

White Lake Township 

7525 Highland Road 

White Lake, MI 48383 

(248) 698-3300 x 177 

www.whitelaketwp.com 

 
CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This e-mail and any attachments thereto are the property of White Lake Township. This 

transmission may contain information that is privileged, confidential, and exempt from disclosure under applicable law. 

If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution or use of the 

information contained herein (including any reliance thereon) is STRICTLY PROHIBITED. Sender accepts no liability for 

any damages caused by any virus transmitted by this email. If you received this transmission in error, please contact the 

sender and delete the material from any computer immediately. Thank you. 

 

From: Marianne <mmoran925@gmail.com>  

Sent: Monday, November 23, 2020 2:59 PM 

To: Justin Quagliata <JustinQ@whitelaketwp.com> 

Subject: Re: 8834 Arlington - Variance Mtg. 

 

Thanks for getting back with me Justin. 

 

Can you send me a link to the ordinance?  I can't seem to find Article 7. 

 

Thanks 

 

Marianne 

 

On Mon, Nov 23, 2020 at 2:44 PM Justin Quagliata <JustinQ@whitelaketwp.com> wrote: 

Marianne,   

 



2

I’m sorry I missed your call. The Planning Dept. is working from home this week due to Covid. The variance standards 

we discussed are found in Article 7, Section 37 of the zoning ordinance. If you have any questions, feel free to call me 

on my cell (248) 505-7820. 

 

Thanks,  

Justin 

 

Sent from my iPhone 

 

On Nov 23, 2020, at 2:38 PM, Marianne <mmoran925@gmail.com> wrote: 

  

Hi Justin,  

 

I left a couple messages for you regarding the zoning ordinance you referred me to. I could not find it. 

 

Since I have not heard back from you, I will just explain here why we need the variance. 

1.       Existing 50ft wide lot minus 10ft set back on each side of property, leaves 30ft wide 

buildable lot.  

2.       Conform to neighborhood new homes on similar size property on Pontiac Lake.  I.e. 2718 

Tackles Rd, and 2267 Kingston St., both on Pontiac Lake. 

3.       The necessity for a garage to store boat and house cars. 

When available, please send me the agenda and call-in information for the December 17 zoning 

appeals meeting.  

 

If you need more information, please do not hesitate to contact me. 

 

Sincerely, 

Marianne Moran  

(248)880-3535  

 





WHITE LAKE TOWNSHIP 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

 

REPORT OF THE  
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT  

 
 
TO:  Zoning Board of Appeals 
 
FROM: Justin Quagliata, Staff Planner 
 
DATE: January 28, 2021 
 
 
 
Agenda item: 6b 
 
 
Appeal Date: January 28, 2021 (Tabled from December 10, 2020)  
  
 
Applicant:  M.J. Whelan Construction  
  
   
Address:  620 N. Milford Road 
   Milford, MI 48381 
 
   
Zoning:  R1-D Single Family Residential 
 
 
Location: 10199 Lakeside Drive 
 White Lake, MI 48386 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Property Description   
 
The approximately 0.223-acre (9,713.88 square feet) parcel identified as 10199 Lakeside 
Drive is located on Oxbow Lake and zoned R1-D (Single Family Residential).  The 
existing house on the property (approximately 1,830 square feet in size) utilizes a private 
well for potable water and a private septic system for sanitation.   
 
Applicant’s Proposal 
 
M.J. Whelan Construction, the applicant, on behalf of property owner Laura Dobbs, is 
proposing to construct an addition to the first and second stories of the house.  The 
applicant indicated the project includes remodeling both stories of the existing house. 
 
Planner’s Report 
 
Currently the existing house is nonconforming to setbacks; the structure is located 4.1 
feet from the east side property line, 4.2 feet from the west side property line, and 6.7 feet 
from the front property line.  A minimum 10-foot side yard setback and 30-foot front 
yard setback is required in the R1-D zoning district.  The parcel is also nonconforming 
due to a 2,286.12 square foot deficiency in lot area and a 21.93-foot deficiency in lot 
width.  In the R1-D zoning district the minimum lot size requirement is 12,000 square 
feet and the minimum lot width requirement is 80 feet. 
 
The proposed first floor addition is 48 square feet in size and located 8.5 feet from the 
east side lot line.  Currently the second story is 705 square feet in size and the proposed 
addition on that level is 805 square feet in size.  The second story addition at the front of 
the house would be located five feet (roof overhang) from the east side property line and 
9.5 feet from the front property line.  At the rear of the house the proposed second story 
roof overhang is five feet from the west side lot line. 
 
Based on the improvements to the nonconforming portion of the house that encroaches 
farther than 9.5 feet towards the front property line, a variance of 23.3 feet is required to 
cover the existing 6.7-foot front yard setback.  
 
Article 7, Section 28 of the zoning ordinance states repairs and maintenance to 
nonconforming structures cannot exceed fifty percent (50%) of the State Equalized 
Valuation (SEV) in any twelve (12) consecutive months.  Further, the ordinance does not 
allow the cubic content of nonconforming structures to be increased.  Based on the SEV 
of the structure ($105,340), the maximum extent of improvements cannot exceed 
$52,670.  The value of the proposed work is $200,000.  A variance to exceed the allowed 
value of improvements by 380% is requested.   
 
 
 
 
 
 



The requested variances are listed in the following table.  
 

Variance # Ordinance 
Section Subject Standard Requested 

Variance Result 

1 Article 3.1.6.E Front yard 
setback 30 feet 23.3 feet 6.7 feet 

2 Article 3.1.6.E Side yard 
setback 10 feet 5 feet 

(east and west) 
5 feet 

(east and west) 

3 Article 3.1.6.E Minimum lot 
size 12,000 sq. ft. 2,286.12 sq. ft. 9,713.88 sq. ft. 

4 Article 3.1.6.E Minimum lot 
width 80 feet 21.93 feet 58.07 feet 

5 Article 7.28.A Nonconforming 
structure 

50% SEV 
($52,670) 380% 

$147,330 over 
allowed 

improvements 
 
 
Zoning Board of Appeals Options: 
 
Approval:  I move to approve the variances requested by M.J. Whelan Construction 
from Article 3.1.6.E and Article 7.28.A of the Zoning Ordinance for Parcel Number 12-
22-477-011, identified as 10199 Lakeside Drive, in order to alter the existing building 
and construct an addition that would encroach 23.3 feet into the required front yard 
setback, 5 feet into the required side yard setback from both the east and west property 
lines, and exceed the allowed value of improvements to a nonconforming structure by 
380%.  A 21.93-foot variance from the required lot width and 2,286.12 square foot 
variance from the required lot size are also granted from Article 3.1.6.E.  This approval 
will have the following conditions: 
 
• The Applicant shall obtain all necessary permits from the White Lake Township 

Building Department. 
 

• An as-built survey shall be required to verify the side yard setbacks.  The projection 
of the roof overhang shall be no closer than five feet to the east and west side lot 
lines.   

 
Denial:  I move to deny the variances requested by M.J. Whelan Construction for 
Parcel Number 12-22-477-011, identified as 10199 Lakeside Drive, due to the following 
reason(s): 
 
Table:  I move to table the variance requests of M.J. Whelan Construction for Parcel 
Number 12-22-477-011, identified as 10199 Lakeside Drive, to consider comments stated 
during this public hearing. 
 
 
 



Attachments: 
 
1. Variance application dated September 24, 2020. 
2. Survey dated July 29, 2020. 
3. Site plan, building elevations, and floor plans dated December 11, 2020. 
4. Existing building elevations and floor plans dated November 7, 2020. 
5. Letter of denial from the Building Department dated September 30, 2020. 
 
 
 

 
 































WHITE LAKE TOWNSHIP 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

 

REPORT OF THE  
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT  

 
 
TO:  Zoning Board of Appeals 
 
FROM: Justin Quagliata, Staff Planner 
 
DATE: January 28, 2021 
 
 
 
Agenda item: 6c 
 
 
Appeal Date: January 28, 2021 
  
 
Applicant:  Maria Elliot 
  
   
Address:  2115 Haley Road 
   White Lake, MI 48383 
 
   
Zoning:  SF Suburban Farms 
 
 
Location: 2115 Haley Road 
 White Lake, MI 48383 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Property Description   
 
The approximately 3.01-acre parcel identified as 2115 Haley Road is located in Section 
16 of the Township and zoned SF (Suburban Farms).  The existing house on the property 
(approximately 1,429 square feet in size) utilizes a private well for potable water and a 
private septic system for sanitation. 
 
Applicant’s Proposal 
 
Maria Elliot, the applicant, is requesting the Zoning Board of Appeals vary the standards 
for the keeping of Class II animals to allow four equine animals where three are 
permissible. 
 
Planner’s Report 
 
Article 4, Section 2 of the zoning ordinance outlines the standards for the Maintenance of 
Animals in AG (Agricultural) and SF zoning districts.  Class II animals, including 
bovine, swine, ovine, equine, rabbits and chickens may be maintained in AG and SF 
districts on lots having two or more acres.  Two Class II animals are allowed on a two-
acre lot, and one additional animal may be kept for each additional acre by which the 
parcel exceeds two acres. 
  
The subject site is 3.01 acres in size, so three Class II animals are allowed by right.  The 
applicant is maintaining three horses and one donkey on the property.  A donkey is a 
member of the equine family, therefore the donkey counts towards the animal allowance.  
In August 2020 the Township Ordinance Officer received a complaint regarding the 
number of animals being maintained by the Applicant, and a violation letter was sent to 
the Applicant.  Corrective enforcement measures have been stayed pending a decision by 
the Zoning Board of Appeals.  If the decision rendered by the Board is denial, a 
correction period should be determined by the Board to remove one animal from the site.   
 
For background, this request is the first appeal the Board has considered from the 
Maintenance of Animals ordinance.  While each case is considered independently and on 
its own merits, the Board should recognize granting variances of this type could result in 
future requests from this ordinance, particularly for chickens and rabbits.  Staff believes 
requests of this nature should be avoided. 
 
For reference, this ordinance is similar, and in some cases less restrictive, than adjoining 
communities.  Commerce Township utilizes the same regulation method for horses as 
White Lake Township.  Waterford Township allows three hoofed livestock (horses, 
cattle, mules, sheep, goats, llamas, and swine) on lots at least five contiguous acres in 
size, if lots within a one-quarter mile radius are an average size of not less than three 
acres.  Chickens and small birds are permitted by right on lots five contiguous acres or 
greater in size, and subject to special use approval by the Planning Commission on lots 
less than five contiguous acres in size.   
 
 



Springfield Township requires a minimum lot area of four acres for bovine, equine, 
swine, and ovine and allows one animal for the first four acres and one additional animal 
for each one acre in excess of four acres.  Chickens and rabbits are permitted on lots a 
minimum of 1.5 acres in size, and one animal for the first 1.5 acres and one additional 
animal for each one-quarter acre in excess of 1.5 acres is allowed.  
 
All of the standards outlined in Article 7, Section 37 of the zoning ordinance must be met 
in order to grant a variance.  The requested variances are listed in the following table. 
 

Variance # Ordinance 
Section Subject Standard Requested 

Variance Result 

1 Article 4.2 
Minimum lot size 

for maintenance of 4 
Class II animals 

4 acres 0.99 acre 3.01 acres 

2 Article 4.2 Maximum Class II 
animal allowance 

3  
(3.01 acres) 1 4 

 
 
Zoning Board of Appeals Options: 
 
Approval:  I move to approve the variances requested by Maria Elliot from Article 4, 
Section 2 of the Zoning Ordinance for Parcel Number 12-16-401-024, identified as 2115 
Haley Road, in order to allow four (4) Class II animals on a 3.01-acre lot.  This approval 
will have the following conditions: 
 
• The Applicant shall comply with all necessary standards for the maintenance of Class 

II animals found in Article 4, Section 2 of the White Lake Township zoning 
ordinance. 
 

• No additional Class II animals shall be maintained on the property. 
 
 
Denial:  I move to deny the variances requested by Maria Elliot for Parcel Number 12-
16-401-024, identified as 2115 Haley Road, due to the following reason(s): 
 
• Further, one animal shall be removed from the property within thirty (30) days. 
 
 
Table:  I move to table the variance requests of Maria Elliot for Parcel Number 12-16-
401-024, identified as 2115 Haley Road, to consider comments stated during this public 
hearing. 
 
 
 
 



Attachments: 
 
1. Variance application dated December 9, 2020. 
2. Applicant’s written statement dated September 21, 2020. 
3. Violation letter from the Ordinance Officer dated August 27, 2020. 
 
 
 

 
 













WHITE LAKE TOWNSHIP 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

 

REPORT OF THE  
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT  

 
 
TO:  Zoning Board of Appeals 
 
FROM: Justin Quagliata, Staff Planner 
 
DATE: January 28, 2021 
 
 
 
Agenda item: 6d 
 
 
Appeal Date: January 28, 2021 
  
 
Applicant:  Metro Detroit Signs 
  
   
Address:  11444 Kaltz Avenue 
   Warren, MI 48089 
 
   
Zoning:  GB General Business 
 
 
Location: 9178 Highland Road 
 White Lake, MI 48386 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Property Description   
 
The approximately 0.844-acre (36,764.64 square feet) parcel identified as 9178 Highland 
Road is located on the northeast corner of Fisk and Highland Roads and zoned GB 
(General Business). 
 
Applicant’s Proposal 
 
Metro Detroit Signs, the applicant, on behalf of property owner Dr. David Leskowitz, is 
proposing to install a 6.64-foot-tall monument sign with an electronic message board. 
 
Planner’s Report 
 
The proposed sign is 4.85 feet by 8.13 feet (39.42 square feet) in size.  The electronic 
message board is 3.6 feet by 8.13 feet (29.26 square feet) in size, and the top static 
cabinet is 1.25 feet by 8.13 feet (10.16 square feet in size).  In accordance with Article 5, 
Section 9.J.i, the maximum sign height from grade is six feet, including the decorative 
elements such as bases, columns, and caps.  The ordinance also requires freestanding 
signs to be installed on a decorative masonry base a minimum of 18 inches in height from 
the finished grade.  The proposed base meets the current standard.  Additionally, Article 
5, Section 9.J.vii of the zoning ordinance states for signs including an electronic message 
board, the upper 25% of the sign cannot include an electronic display component.  The 
proposed sign meets this standard.  Based on an overall sign height of 6.64 feet, the 
applicant is requesting a 7.68-inch (0.64-foot) variance.  
 
At its January 19 meeting the Township Board introduced the first reading of a series of 
zoning ordinance amendments.  A provision of the sign ordinance being amended 
increases the maximum sign height from six feet to seven feet.  After the Township 
Board adopts the zoning amendments at its February meeting, the proposed sign height 
would be conforming.  The property owner was informed of this change to sign policy 
and asked to proceed with the variance request.  Based on the increased sign height which 
will soon be permitted, staff recommends approval of the requested variance.  With the 
amended ordinance, the sign height variance will be void.  Granting this variance would 
allow the applicant to begin installing the sign in advance of the amended ordinance 
taking effect. 
 
The requested variance is listed in the following table. 
 

Variance # Ordinance 
Section Subject Standard Requested 

Variance Result 

1 Article 5.9.J.i Maximum sign 
height 6 feet 7.68 inches 6.64 feet 

 
 
 
 
 



Zoning Board of Appeals Options: 
 
Approval:  I move to approve the variance requested by Metro Detroit Signs from 
Article 5.9.J.i of the Zoning Ordinance for Parcel Number 12-23-26-005, identified as 
9178 Highland Road, in order to install a monument sign that would exceed the allowed 
height by 7.68 inches.  This approval will have the following conditions: 
 
• The Applicant shall obtain all necessary permits from the White Lake Township 

Building Department. 
 

• All nonconforming signs shall be removed from the property. 
 
 
Denial:  I move to deny the variance requested by Metro Detroit Signs for Parcel 
Number 12-23-26-005, identified as 9178 Highland Road, due to the following reason(s): 
 
 
Table:  I move to table the variance request of Metro Detroit Signs for Parcel Number 
12-23-26-005, identified as 9178 Highland Road, to consider comments stated during this 
public hearing. 
 
 
Attachments: 
 
1. Variance application dated December 7, 2020. 
2. Applicant’s written statement dated December 7, 2020. 
3. Sign plan dated October 21, 2020 (revision date November 23, 2020).  
4. Site plan dated November 23, 2020. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 











WHITE LAKE TOWNSHIP 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

 

REPORT OF THE  
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT  

 
 
TO:  Zoning Board of Appeals 
 
FROM: Justin Quagliata, Staff Planner 
 
DATE: January 28, 2021 
 
 
 
Agenda item: 6e 
 
 
Appeal Date: January 28, 2021 
  
 
Applicant:  James Stanecki 
  
   
Address:  8884 Cooley Lake Road 
   White Lake, MI 48386 
 
   
Zoning:  R1-D Single Family Residential 
 
 
Location: 8884 Cooley Lake Road 
 White Lake, MI 48386 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Property Description   
 
The approximately 0.49-acre (21,344.4 square feet) parcel identified as 8884 Cooley 
Lake Road is located on Cooley Lake and zoned R1-D (Single Family Residential).  The 
existing house on the property (approximately 1,963 square feet in size) utilizes a private 
well for potable water and the public sanitary sewer system for sanitation. 
 
Applicant’s Proposal 
 
James Stanecki, the applicant, is proposing to divide a lot that is currently comprised of 
two lots of the Twin Shores plat (Lots 7 & 8). 
 
Planner’s Report 
 
The submitted survey indicates the proposed division would keep the house on the 
proposed Parcel A in compliance with the 10-foot minimum side yard setback 
requirement.  Parcel B would contain 70 feet of lot width along the chord and 0.21-acre 
of lot area (9,147.6 square feet).  The proposed Parcel A would contain 64.66 feet of lot 
width (14.66 feet along the chord) and 0.28-acre of lot area (12,196.8 square feet). 
 
The R1-D zoning district requires a minimum lot area of 12,000 square feet and a 
minimum lot width of 80 feet, as measured along the right-of-way line of the street upon 
which the lot fronts.  With a proposed lot width for Parcel A of 64.66 feet a 15.34-foot 
variance is requested.  With a proposed lot width of 70 feet and a proposed lot area of 
9,147.6 square feet a 10-foot variance for lot width and a 2,852.4 square foot variance for 
lot area is being requested for Parcel B. 
 
The proposed partitioning of the parcel would require a land division, which would be 
considered by the Assessor.  The applicant intends to apply for a land division pending 
the outcome of the variance requests. 
 
The submitted survey shows an 80 square foot shed located 1.3 feet from the west side 
property line and eight feet from the northwest corner of the house.  Article 5, Section 
7.A of the zoning ordinance states no accessory building or structure may be located 
closer than 10 feet to any principal structure or building unless it conforms to all 
regulations of the ordinance applicable to principal structures or buildings.  The shed is 
nonconforming to the 10-foot side yard setback.  If the Board approves the request, staff 
recommends a condition requiring the shed become compliant with setbacks.  If the shed 
is moved 10 feet away from the house, the accessory structure side yard setback can be 
reduced to five feet. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



The requested variances are listed in the following table. 
 

Variance # Ordinance 
Section Subject Standard Requested Variance Result 

1 Article 3.1.6.E Minimum lot 
size 

12,000 
square feet 

2,852.4 square feet 
(Parcel B) 9,147.6 square feet 

2 Article 3.1.6.E Minimum lot 
width 80 feet 15.34 feet (Parcel A) 

10 feet (Parcel B) 
64.66 feet (Parcel A) 

70 feet (Parcel B) 
 
 
Zoning Board of Appeals Options: 
 
Approval:  I move to approve the variances requested by James Stanecki from Article 
3.1.6.E of the Zoning Ordinance for Parcel Number 12-36-351-027, identified as 8884 
Cooley Lake Road, in order to divide a lot with the partitioning requiring 15.34 feet 
(Parcel A) and 10 feet (Parcel B) variances for lot width and 2,852.4 square foot variance 
for lot area.  This approval will have the following conditions: 
 
• The Applicant shall apply for and receive land division approval from the Township 

Assessor. 
 

• The nonconforming shed shall be relocated to comply with setbacks. 
 
 
Denial:  I move to deny the variances requested by James Stanecki for Parcel Number 
12-36-351-027, identified as 8884 Cooley Lake Road, due to the following reason(s): 
 
 
Table:  I move to table the variance requests of James Stanecki for Parcel Number 12-
36-351-027, identified as 8884 Cooley Lake Road, to consider comments stated during 
this public hearing. 
 
 
Attachments: 
 
1. Variance application dated January 4, 2021. 
2. Certificate of survey dated January 4, 2021. 
3. Email from the Department of Public Services dated December 21, 2020. 
4. Letter of denial from the Assessor dated September 19, 2017. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 















WHITE LAKE TOWNSHIP 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

 

REPORT OF THE  
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT  

 
 
TO:  Zoning Board of Appeals 
 
FROM: Justin Quagliata, Staff Planner 
 
DATE: January 28, 2021 
 
 
 
Agenda item: 6f 
 
 
Appeal Date: January 28, 2021  
  
 
Applicant:  Matthew Slicker 
  
   
Address:  408 Burgess Drive 
   White Lake, MI 48386 
 
   
Zoning:  R1-C Single Family Residential 
 
 
Location: 408 Burgess Drive 
 White Lake, MI 48386 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Property Description   
 
The approximately 0.387-acre (16,857.72 square feet) parcel identified as 408 Burgess 
Drive is located on Cedar Island Lake and zoned R1-C (Single Family Residential).  The 
existing single-story house on the property (approximately 2,375 square feet in size) 
utilizes a private well for potable water and a private septic system for sanitation.  The 
property, Lot 3 of the Cedar Island Shores plat, contains 68 feet in width at the street line. 
 
Applicant’s Proposal 
 
Matthew Slicker, the applicant, is proposing to remove the existing 20-foot by 24-foot 
(480 square feet) single-story two-car attached garage to construct a new 33-foot by 24-
foot two-story attached garage (792 square feet per floor; 1,584 total square feet). 
 
Planner’s Report 
 
The existing house was built in 1954 and is nonconforming because it is located 2.9 feet 
from the west side property line and 4.8 feet (garage) from the east side property line.  
The proposed addition at the front of the house would be located five feet (roof overhang) 
from the east side lot line.  A five-foot variance is being requested to encroach into the 
east side yard setback.  
 
Article 7, Section 28 of the zoning ordinance states repairs and maintenance to 
nonconforming structures cannot exceed fifty percent (50%) of the State Equalized 
Valuation (SEV) in any twelve (12) consecutive months.  Further, the ordinance does not 
allow the cubic content of nonconforming structures to be increased.  Based on the SEV 
of the structure ($100,400), the maximum extent of improvements cannot exceed 
$50,200.  The value of the proposed work is $200,000.  A variance to exceed the allowed 
value of improvements by 398% is requested. 
 
The requested variances are listed in the following table. 
 

Variance # Ordinance 
Section Subject Standard Requested 

Variance Result 

1 Article 3.1.5.E Side yard 
setback 10 feet 5 feet (east) 5 feet (east) 

2 Article 3.1.5.E Minimum lot 
width 100 feet 32 feet 68 feet 

3 Article 7.28.A Nonconforming 
structure 

50% SEV 
($50,200) 398% 

$149,800 
over allowed 

improvements 
 
 
 
 
 



Recommended Motions: 
 
Approval:  I move to approve the variances requested by Matthew Slicker from 
Articles 3.1.5.E and 7.28.A of the Zoning Ordinance for Parcel Number 12-27-427-004, 
identified as 408 Burgess Drive, in order to construct an addition that would encroach 5 
feet into the required side yard setback from the east lot line and exceed the allowed 
value of improvements to a nonconforming structure by 398%.  A 32-foot variance from 
the required lot width is also granted from Article 3.1.5.E.  This approval will have the 
following conditions: 
 
• The Applicant shall obtain all necessary permits from the White Lake Township 

Building Department. 
 

• An as-built survey shall be required to verify the side yard setback.  The projection of 
the roof overhang shall be no closer than five feet to the east side lot line.   

 
 
Denial:  I move to deny the variances requested by Matthew Slicker for Parcel Number 
12-27-427-004, identified as 408 Burgess Drive, due to the following reason(s): 
 
 
Table:  I move to table the variance requests of Matthew Slicker for Parcel Number 12-
27-427-004, identified as 408 Burgess Drive, to consider comments stated during this 
public hearing. 
 
 
Attachments: 
 
1. Variance application dated January 4, 2021. 
2. Survey dated August 20, 2004 (revision date January 4, 2021). 
3. Letter of denial from the Building Department dated January 7, 2021. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 

 
 
 









WHITE LAKE TOWNSHIP 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

 

REPORT OF THE  
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT  

 
 
TO:  Zoning Board of Appeals 
 
FROM: Justin Quagliata, Staff Planner 
 
DATE: January 28, 2021 
 
RE:  Bylaw Amendments 
 
 
Based on staff research, it appears the Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) bylaws have not 
been reviewed and updated in over 20 years.  The proposed amendments modernize and 
simplify many provisions of the bylaws, and include a few new bylaws related to the 
current operations of the Planning Department and practices of the Board.  A summary of 
the substantive amendments are as follows: 
 
• Article 3, Section 1: replaced repealed Township Zoning Act (Act 184 of 1943) with 

the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act 110 of 2006. 
 
• Article 4, Section 1: eliminated limitation of officers serving more than two 

consecutive terms. 
 

• Article 4, Section 5: eliminated this section for a Secretary officer.  The Planning 
Department acts as the ZBA secretary.  Removed references to “Secretary” and 
replaced with “Planning Department” throughout bylaws. 

 
• Article 5, Section 1: updated this section regarding establishment of the annual 

meeting schedule. 
 

• Article 5, Section 2: updated this section regarding special meeting notice to Board 
members. 

 
• Article 5, Section 5: newly created section stating “No more than six public hearings 

may be scheduled for a regular meeting of the Board.  The Chairperson may approve 
exceptions when this bylaw would cause substantial backlog in Board business.”  
This documents the policy we currently utilize. 

 



• Article 5, Section 6: newly created section stating “Agenda items shall not be 
introduced for discussion or a public hearing opened after 10:00 p.m.  The 
Chairperson may approve exceptions when this bylaw would cause substantial 
backlog in Board business.”  In practice, if an item is completed after 10:00 p.m. and 
there is remaining business on the agenda, the Chair (who would likely seek 
concurrence from the other Board members), would decide whether or not to proceed 
with the meeting. 

 
• Article 6, Section 1: updated this section regarding order of business (agenda) for 

more flexibility.  
 

• Article 8, Section 5: updated this section (Stays) to be more consistent with Article 7, 
Section 34 of the zoning ordinance. 

 
• Article 9: updated (simplified) this section regarding notice of public hearings. 

 
• Article 11, Section 7: newly created section establishing a correction period for 

violations (determined by the Board, not to exceed six months). 
 

• Article 12, Section 2: newly created section establishing a method to suspend a 
bylaw (at least three affirmative votes). 

 
Redline and clean copy versions of the bylaws are attached.  In accordance with Article 
XII, Section 1 of the current bylaws, an affirmative vote of a majority of the total 
membership of the Board is needed to amend the bylaws.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1  

 

 

 

 

 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF WHITE LAKE 

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

 

By-Llaws and Rules of Procedure 

 

Preamble 

 

These by-laws and rules are supplementary to the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance of the 

Charter Township of White Lake as they relate to procedures of the Zoning Board of Appeals. 

Nothing herein shall be construed to give or grant to the Zoning Board of Appeals the power or 

authority to grant use variances, to alter or change the zoning ordinance, including the zoning map, 

which authority is reserved for the Township Board. 

 
These by-laws and rules of procedures are adopted by the White Lake Township Zoning Board of 

Appeals (hereinafter called the Board). 

 

Article 1: Title  

Section 1 

The title of the Board shall be "The Zoning Board of Appeals for the Charter Township of White 

Lake.". 

 

Article II: Membership 

Section 1 

The Board of Appeals shall consist of five (5) regular members who shall be appointed by the 

Township Board. A member of the Board must be a member of the Planning Commission and a 

member of the Board may be a member of the Township Board.  In addition to the five (5) regular 

members, the Township Board may appoint two alternate members. An alternate member may be 

called by the cChairperson to sit as a regular member of the Board of Appeals in the absence of a 

regular member if a regular member is absent from or unable to attend two or more consecutive 

meetings of the Board of Appeals.  Once an alternate member has been appointed, he or she shall 

serve in the case until a final decision has been made. An alternate member shall have the same 

voting rights as a regular member of the Board of Appeals. 

 

Section 2 

 

Each member shall be appointed and serve for three (3) years, expiring on a date in December 31 

in the year of expiration as determined by Township Board appointment,. except for a member 

serving because of their membership on the Township Board, whose term shall be limited to the 

time he or she is a member of that body. Successor's in office shall be appointed not more than 

one month after the term of the preceding member has expired. All vacancies for unexpired terms 

shall be filled for the remainder of the term. If appointments are made from the Planning 

Commission and/or Township Board, one or two of the terms shall be modified to facilitate these 

appointments. 



2  

 

 

 

 

Article III: AUTHORITY 

Section 1 

The Board of Appeals shall have all the powers and assume all the duties outlined in Act 184 of 

the Public Acts of 1943 as amended the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act (MZEA) 110 of 2006 

(MCL 125.3101 et. seq.) and Zoning Ordinance No. 58 of the Charter Township of White Lake. 

 

Article IV: 

 

Section 1  

 

            Officers and their Duties 

 

(a) The officers of the Board shall consist of Chairperson, and Vice- 

Chairperson, selected from the general membership of the Board. 

 

(b) The election of all officers shall occur at the Board's first meeting in 

January following Township bBoard appointments or re-appointments. 

 

(c) Any member nominated for an office ofn the Board shall have served 

on the Board for at least one year. 

 

(d) Nominations of members for an office shall be from the floor by a 

current member of the Board during the meeting when elections are held. 

 

(e) All nominations shall be seconded by another member of the Board to 

be considered a valid nomination. 

 

(t)  All elections shall be conducted by a roll call vote. If there is only one 

nominee for an office, that nominee shall be assumed to be unanimously 

elected. 

 

(g) 

 

 

(h) 

 

(I) 

To be elected to an office, a nominee must receive a majority of the votes of 

those present. 

 

All terms of office shall be for one year. 

 

A member of the Board may serve in the same office of the Board for any 

number of terms, but not more than two consecutive terms. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



3 
 

 

 

 

Section 2 

 

Resignation of Officers 

 

(a) An officer may resign his/her office by submitting a letter to the Board 

addressed to the Chairperson or Vice- Chairperson, as appropriate. 

 

(b) The resignation from office will not become effective until acted upon 

and accepted by the Board at its next regularly scheduled meeting. 



4  

 

 

 

 

In the event an office becomes vacant by death, resignation or otherwise, the Board of Appeals shall 

elect an officer to serve the remainder of the term. 

 

Section 3 

 

Chairperson 

 

The Chairperson shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Appeals, in accordance 

with the rules provided herein. 

 

Clearly state the issues before the Board. 

 

As appropriate, act as a liaison between the Board, and the Planning Staff, 

consultants, and other pertinent agencies or agents of the Township of White 

Lake, and utilizing proper administrative/management chains of authority. 

 

Summarize pertinent correspondence received which deal with an issue before the 

Board. 

 

Reserve his/her opinions on an issue until the other members of the Board 

who so wish have spoken on the issue. 

 

 

Section 4 

 

Vice-Chairperson 

 

The Vice-Chairperson shall preside over meetings in the absence of the 

Chairperson, and at such times he or she shall have all the powers and be responsible 

for all the duties of the Chairperson. 

 

Assist the Chairperson in recognizing members who may wish to speak. 

 

Shall succeed to the office of Chairperson in the event of a vacancy in that 

office, in which case the Board shall select a successor to the office of Vice- 

Chairperson at the earliest practicable time. 

 

Section 5 

 

Secretary 

 

The Board shall appoint a secretary who need not be a member of the Board. 

 

The Secretary shall keep written records of all minutes, procedures, actions, 

and correspondence of the Board. 

 

 

 

 

 

It shall be his/her duty to send notices of the meetings together with 

information and material to members. 



5  

 

The Secretary shall supervise all clerical work of the Board, sign all 

extra-official communications of the Board, and perform such other 

additional duties as may be requested by the Board. 

 

 

Article V: Meetings 

Section 1 

At the beginning of each year of its existence, the Secretary shall recommend to the Township Board 

the date, time and place of the regular meetings of the Board and shall advise the Board of the date, 

time and place of the meetings set by the Township Board. The Board shall hold at least six (6) 

regular meetings each year. All meetings of the Board shall be posted at the Township in 

accordance with the Open Meetings Act. All meetings shall be held on the fourth Thursday of the 

Month, unless otherwise so designated. A schedule of the Board’s regular meetings including date, 

time, and place shall be established for each calendar year in accordance with the Open Meetings 

Act (Act 267 of 1976 as amended). Notice of such schedule shall be available to the public no later 

than ten days after the first meeting of the Board in each calendar year. A change in the regular 

meeting schedule shall be posted within three days after the meeting at which the change is made. 

 

Section 2 

 

Special meetings may be called at any item by the order of the Chairperson. Also, special 

meetings may be called upon request of two (2) members. When a special meeting is called, the 

Planning Department Secretary shall provide seventy-two (72) hours' notice of same to each 

member of the bBoard. Notification may be by e-mail or telephone and shall include the purpose 

of the meeting. Public notice of special meetings shall be in accordance with the Open Meetings 

Act (Act 267 of 1976 as amended). Agenda items to be considered at a special meeting shall be 

limited to those included in the call to meeting, unless all members are present and vote otherwise. 

 

Section 3 

 

All meetings shall be open to the public and shall be preceded by notice in accordance with the 

Michigan Open Meetings Act, Act 2676 of the Public Acts of 1976 as amended and the Zoning 

Ordinance. 

 

Section 4 

 

In parliamentary matters, Robert's Rules of Order shall govern. The Chairpersonpresiding officer, 

subject to these rules, shall decide all points of order or procedure. 

 

Section 5 

 

No more than six public hearings may be scheduled for a regular meeting of the Board. The 

Chairperson may approve exceptions when this bylaw would cause substantial backlog in Board 

business. 

 

Section 6 

 

Agenda items shall not be introduced for discussion or a public hearing opened after 10:00 p.m.  

The Chairperson may approve exceptions when this bylaw would cause substantial backlog in 

Board business. 



6  

 

 

Article VI: Order of Business 

Section 1 

An agenda outlining the order of business shall be developed by the Planning Department with  

concurrence of the Chairperson. The agenda may be reordered by the Board during a scheduled meeting.  

The Board may postpone action on an agenda item if substantive information or materials are submitted at  

the meeting at which the agenda item is scheduled for consideration.The order of business for meetings  

shall be as follows: 

 

1. Call to order by Chairperson 

2. Roll Call 

3. Determination of a quorum 

4.   Approval of previous meetings(s) minutes 

5. Communications 

6. Hearing of cases: 



7  

 

 

 

 

tabled cases 

new cases 

7. Miscellaneous business 

8. Adjournment 

 

Article VII: Quorum and Voting 

Section 1 

For the transaction of ordinary business, at any regular meeting, or special meeting, three (3) 

members shall constitute a quorum. The occurringaffirmative vote of at least a majoritythree (3) of the 

members of the Board shall be necessary to reverse any order, requirement, decision, or determination 

of any administrative official, or to decide any matter upon which the Board is required to pass by law, 

or to eaffect any variation in the terms of the Zoning Ordinance. 

 

Section 2 

 

A member shall disqualify himself or herself from participation in discussing a matter or voting on a matter 

in which he or she has a conflict of interest. Failure of a member to disqualify himself or herself as outlined 

above when a conflict of interest exists may constitute misconductmalfeasance in office. 

 

The member shall exit the room when theis case is called, and shall not return until a decision has been 

recorded. An alternate member may be called to sit for the regular member. Whenever possible, 

notification of a conflict shall be given to the Chairperson at least 72 hours prior to the hearing, and the 

Chairperson shall notify the Planning Staff so that an alternate may be requested to attend the meeting. 

 

Article VIII: Appeals 

Section 1 

All applications to the Board of Appeals shall be made in writing on forms provided for that purpose. An 

application form may be obtained from the Planning Department. Appeals will be scheduled for hearing 

before the Board upon receipt of a completed application and supporting documentation and information 

required to be provided with the application.  The application shall be accompanied by such fee as 

established by the Township Board. 

 

Section 2 

 

An appeal shall be made by the applicant within forty-five (45) days from the date of order, refusal of 

permit, requirement, or determination of such department from which the appeal is taken. The Board 

may, in exceptional cases, for good reason grant additional time to file an appeal. 

 

Section 3 

 

Applications of appeals for interpretation, variance, or appeal of an administrative decision pursuant 

to the requirements of the zoning ordinance shall be made in the name of the property 



8  

 

 

 

 

owner or by a person or persons having a substantial interest or rights in the property affected. An 

applicant may appear on his or her own behalf or may be represented by an attorney or agent at the 

hearing. Failure to appear will not necessarily deter action of the Board. 

 

Section 4 

 

The Planning DepartmentSecretary may require of the applicant additional information and/or data 

deemed essential to fully advise the Board of the circumstances relative to the request. Refusal or 

failure to comply shall be grounds for dismissal of the application by the Board. 

 

Section 5 

 

An appeal stays all proceedings in furtherance of the action appealed from subject to the conditions 

enumerated in the Township Rural Zoning Act. An appeal of any administrative order, 

requirement, decision, or determination stays all proceedings in furtherance of the action appealed 

unless the Planning Department, body, or officer certifies to the Board that, by reason of facts 

stated in the certificate, a stay would cause imminent peril to life or property, in which case 

proceedings shall not be stayed other than by a restraining order which may be granted by the 

Board or by the circuit court. 

 

Section 6 

 

The Board of Appeals shall not be bound by strict rules of evidence and it may exclude irrelevant, 

immaterial, incompetent, or unduly repetitious testimony or evidence. 

 

 

Article IX: Notice of Hearing 

 

A written notice of public hearing indicating the nature of the request, the name of the applicant, 

and the date, time and place of the public hearing shall be mailed to the applicant and to the owners 

of all lots or parcels of land lying within three hundred (300) feet of the property in question or to 

the owners and occupants of the two adjoining parcels, whichever is farther.  If any of the parcels 

fall within the boundary limits or an established homeowner' s association, a notice shall be sent to 

said association if the Township has an address on record. The notice shall be delivered personally 

or by regular mail addressed to the respective owners and tenants at the address given in the last 

assessment roll.  If the name of the tenant is not known, the term occupant may be used. Such notice 

shall be served or mailed at least seven (7) days prior to the date of the hearing. Notice of public 

hearings, including date, time, place, and purpose shall be made in conformance with applicable 

statutes and ordinances, including the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act (Act 110 of 2006 as amended) 

and Article 7, Section 35 of Zoning Ordinance No. 58 of the Charter Township of White Lake. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



9  

 

 

 

 

 

Article X: Procedure of Hearing 

Section 1 

The order of procedure of hearing shall be: 

 

1. Presentation of the proponent's request by the Chairperson. 

2. Administrative official's presentation and/or recommendation 

3 ApplicantProponent's presentation of his or her case 

4 Board members questions to the Pproponent. 

5 Open public hearing: Interested persons in support 

    Interested persons in opposition 

6 Close public hearing 

7. Proponent has opportunity to answer to any remarks made by 



10  

 

 

 

the public. 

8.8 Board of Appeals Members' questions, discussion and deliberations. 

 

In the conduct of a hearing, all comments shall be directed to the Chairperson. 

 

Section 2 

 

The petitioner shall limit his/her remarks to ten minutes., 

 

If the petitioner has a spokesperson, that person may make the main 

presentation and the petitioner may also speak, but both speakers 

shall not exceed the time limit of this rule without permission from 

the Chairperson. 

 

Any member of the public wishing to address the Board during the public 

hearing shall fill out a card giving his/her name, address, and item he/she 

wishes to discuss. 

 

The general public shall limit his/her remarks to three minutes each. Speakers 

shall not exceed the time limit of this rule without permission from the 

Chairperson. 

 

Any person speaking on behalf of a group shall limit his/her remarks to five 

minutes, provided that those represented not speak individually. 

 

No person other than a Board member shall be allowed to address an issue 

following the closing of the public hearing by the Chairperson. 

 

 

The Chairperson shall instruct the petitioner or those who wish to speak during 

the public hearing to sum up their remarks when the Chairperson or Board 

Members feel that he/she has strayed from the pertinent facts, has become 

repetitive, or disrespectful to the Board. 

 

 

Section 3 

 

Motions 

 

All motions shall be restated by the Chairperson before a vote is taken.  

The name of the maker and supporters of the motion shall be recorded. 

An affirmative vote of the majority of the Board members present for the 

conduct of business shall be required for the approval of any requested action 

or motion placed before the Board. 

 

Roll call votes shall be required for all votes made by the Board. 



11  

 

 

 

 

 

Roll call votes shall be conducted in alphabetical order. The first such 

vote during the meeting shall begin with the first name alphabetically; 

the second vote shall begin with the second name alphabetically, and so 

forth. The Chairperson shall always cast the final vote. 

 

Any member of the Board shall be excused from discussing or voting on 

any issue in which that member has a financial interest other than the 

common public interest. 

 

Any member of the Board shall be excused from voting on any issue 

concerning that member's conduct. 

 

On all other issues, each member who is present is required to vote unless 

excused by the unanimous consent of the remaining members present. 

 

 

Section 4 

 

Minutes 

 

The Board minutes shall be prepared by the Planning Department or their designee, and approved 

by the Board, and be available to the public. Minutes of closed sessions shall be maintained 

separately and not disclosed to the public, except upon court order.  

 

The minutes shall contain the following: 

 

1. A synopsis of the meeting. 

2. A complete restatement of all motions. 

3. Points of consideration. 

4. A record of the outcome of the Board votes, and the basis for such votes. 

5. A complete statement of the conditions or recommendations made on any 

action. 

6. A record of attendance. 

 

 

ARTICLE XI Disposition of Appeal. 

Section 1 

The Board of Appeals may reverse, affirm, vary or modify any order, requirement, decision, or 

determination as in its opinion should be made, and to that end shall have all the powers of the officer 

from whom the appeal is taken. 

 

Section 2 

 

The final decision shall be in writing. The motion which decides the issue shall be in the form of a 

statement or resolution reciting the findings of facts and shall state the reasons for the findings as well as 

the conclusion and any conditions of approval imposed by the Board of Appeals. 



 

 

 

 

 

Section 3 

 

Any applicant may, with the consent of the Board of Appeals, withdraw his/her application at any time 

prior to final action thereon. 

 

Section 4 

 

Failure of an applicant or a subsequent owner of the property in question, to comply with the terms of 

any decision, including any conditions imposed thereunder, shall be in violation of the Zoning Ordinance 

and such terms and penalties thereunder may be enforced to halt such violation. 

 

 

Section 5 

 

No order of the Board of Appeals permitting the erection or alteration of a building shall be valid for a 

period longer than six (6) months from the date of approval, unless a building permit for such erection or 

alteration is obtained within such period, onand such erection and alteration is started and proceeds to 

completion in accordance with the terms of such permit. 

 

No order of the Board of Appeals permitting a use of a building or premises shall be valid for a period 

longer than six (6) months from the date of approval, unless such use is established within such period; 

provided, however, that where such use permitted is dependent upon the erection or alteration of a 

building, such order shall continue in force and effect if a building permit for said erection or alteration 

is obtained  within such period, and such erection or alteration is started and  proceeds to completion    in 

accordance with the terms of such permit. 

 

Section 6 

 

A file containing materials and decisions in relation to each case shall be kept by the Planning 

DepartmentSecretary as part of the record of the Board of Appeals. All records shall be of public record. 

 

Section 7 

 

All violations shall be corrected within a reasonable time period, as determined by the Board, not to 

exceed six (6) months, as the Board may permit upon application. A violation not corrected within 

the specified time period shall be reported to the Township Attorney. 

 

 

Article XII: Amendment and Suspension of Bylaws 

Section 1 

These by-laws and Rules of Procedure may be amended at any regular meeting upon an affirmative 

vote of a majority of the total membership of the Board of Appeals. 

 

Section 2 

 

A bylaw may be suspended upon an affirmative vote of a majority of the total membership of the Board, 

provided said action is in accordance with established state or federal law, Township ordinance, and 

parliamentary authority. 

 

The foregoing rules and regulations are hereby adopted by the Zoning Board of Appeals forof the 

Charter Township of White Lake on -------- 



1  

 

 

 

 

 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF WHITE LAKE 

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

 

Bylaws  

 

Preamble 

 

These bylaws are supplementary to the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance of the Charter 

Township of White Lake as they relate to procedures of the Zoning Board of Appeals. Nothing 

herein shall be construed to give or grant to the Zoning Board of Appeals the power or authority 

to grant use variances, to alter or change the zoning ordinance, including the zoning map, which 

authority is reserved for the Township Board. 

 
These bylaws are adopted by the White Lake Township Zoning Board of Appeals (hereinafter 
called the Board). 

 

Article 1: Title  

Section 1 

The title of the Board shall be "The Zoning Board of Appeals for the Charter Township of White 

Lake." 

 

Article II: Membership 

Section 1 

The Board shall consist of five (5) regular members who shall be appointed by the Township Board. 

A member of the Board must be a member of the Planning Commission and a member of the Board 

may be a member of the Township Board.  In addition to the five (5) regular members, the Township 

Board may appoint two alternate members. An alternate member may be called by the Chairperson 

to sit as a regular member of the Board in the absence of a regular member.  Once an alternate 

member has been appointed, he or she shall serve in the case until a final decision has been made. 

An alternate member shall have the same voting rights as a regular member of the Board. 

 

Section 2 

 

Each member shall be appointed and serve for three (3) years expiring on a date in December  in 

the year of expiration as determined by Township Board appointment, except for a member serving 

because of their membership on the Township Board, whose term shall be limited to the time he 

or she is a member of that body. Successor's in office shall be appointed not more than one month 

after the term of the preceding member has expired. All vacancies for unexpired terms shall be 

filled for the remainder of the term. If appointments are made from the Planning Commission 

and/or Township Board, one or two of the terms shall be modified to facilitate these appointments. 



2  

 

 

 

 

Article III: AUTHORITY 

Section 1 

The Board shall have all the powers and assume all the duties outlined in the Michigan Zoning 
Enabling Act (MZEA) 110 of 2006 (MCL 125.3101 et. seq.) and Zoning Ordinance No. 58 of the 
Charter Township of White Lake. 

 

Article IV: 

 

Section 1  

 

            Officers and their Duties 

 

(a) The officers of the Board shall consist of Chairperson and Vice- 

Chairperson, selected from the general membership of the Board. 

 

(b) The election of all officers shall occur at the Board's first meeting in 

January following Township Board appointments or re-appointments. 

 

(c) Any member nominated for an office of the Board shall have served 

on the Board for at least one year. 

 

(d) Nominations of members for an office shall be from the floor by a 

current member of the Board during the meeting when elections are held. 

 

(e) All nominations shall be seconded by another member of the Board to 

be considered a valid nomination. 

 

(t)  All elections shall be conducted by a roll call vote. If there is only one 

nominee for an office, that nominee shall be assumed to be unanimously 

elected. 

 

(g) 

 

 

(h) 

 

(I) 

To be elected to an office, a nominee must receive a majority of the votes of 

those present. 

 

All terms of office shall be for one year. 

 

A member of the Board may serve in the same office of the Board for any 

number of terms

Section 2 

  

Resignation of Officers 

 

(a) An officer may resign his/her office by submitting a letter to the Board 

addressed to the Chairperson or Vice-Chairperson, as appropriate. 

 

(b) The resignation from office will not become effective until acted upon 

and accepted by the Board at its next regularly scheduled meeting.



3  

 

 

 

 

In the event an office becomes vacant by death, resignation or otherwise, the Board shall elect an officer to 

serve the remainder of the term. 

 

Section 3 

 

Chairperson 

 

The Chairperson shall preside at all meetings of the Board, in accordance with the rules 

provided herein. 

 

Clearly state the issues before the Board. 

 

As appropriate, act as a liaison between the Board, the Planning Staff, consultants, and 

other pertinent agencies or agents of the Township of White Lake, and utilizing proper 

administrative/management chains of authority. 

 

Summarize pertinent correspondence received which deal with an issue before the 

Board. 

 

Reserve his/her opinions on an issue until the other members of the Board who so wish 

have spoken on the issue. 

 

 

Section 4 

 

Vice-Chairperson 

 

The Vice-Chairperson shall preside over meetings in the absence of the 

Chairperson, and at such times he or she shall have all the powers and be responsible 

for all the duties of the Chairperson. 

 

Assist the Chairperson in recognizing members who may wish to speak. 

 

Shall succeed to the office of Chairperson in the event of a vacancy in that 

office, in which case the Board shall select a successor to the office of Vice- 

Chairperson at the earliest practicable time. 

 

 

 

Article V: Meetings 

Section 1 

The Board shall hold at least six (6) regular meetings each year. A schedule of the Board’s regular 

meetings including date, time, and place shall be established for each calendar year in accordance 

with the Open Meetings Act (Act 267 of 1976 as amended). Notice of such schedule shall be 

available to the public no later than ten days after the first meeting of the Board in each calendar 

year. A change in the regular meeting schedule shall be posted within three days after the meeting 

at which the change is made. 

 

 



4  

 

 

 

Section 2 

 

Special meetings may be called by the order of the Chairperson. Also, special meetings may be 

called upon request of two (2) members. When a special meeting is called, the Planning 

Department shall provide seventy-two (72) hours' notice of same to each member of the Board. 

Notification may be by e-mail or telephone and shall include the purpose of the meeting. Public 

notice of special meetings shall be in accordance with the Open Meetings Act (Act 267 of 1976 as 

amended). Agenda items to be considered at a special meeting shall be limited to those included 

in the call to meeting, unless all members are present and vote otherwise. 

 

Section 3 

 

All meetings shall be open to the public and shall be preceded by notice in accordance with the 

Michigan Open Meetings Act, Act 267 of the Public Acts of 1976 as amended and the Zoning 

Ordinance. 

 

Section 4 

 

In parliamentary matters, Robert's Rules of Order shall govern. The Chairperson, subject to these 

rules, shall decide all points of order or procedure. 

 

Section 5 

 

No more than six public hearings may be scheduled for a regular meeting of the Board. The 

Chairperson may approve exceptions when this bylaw would cause substantial backlog in Board 

business. 

 

Section 6 

 

Agenda items shall not be introduced for discussion or a public hearing opened after 10:00 p.m.  

The Chairperson may approve exceptions when this bylaw would cause substantial backlog in 

Board business. 

 

Article VI: Order of Business 

Section 1 

An agenda outlining the order of business shall be developed by the Planning Department with concurrence  

of the Chairperson. The agenda may be reordered by the Board during a scheduled meeting. The Board may  

postpone action on an agenda item if substantive information or materials are submitted at the meeting at  

which the agenda item is scheduled for consideration. 

 

 

 

 

 



5  

 

 

Article VII: Quorum and Voting 

Section 1 

For the transaction of ordinary business, at any regular meeting, or special meeting, three (3) members 
shall constitute a quorum. The affirmative vote of at least three (3) of the members of the Board shall 
be necessary to reverse any order, requirement, decision, or determination of any administrative official, 
or to decide any matter upon which the Board is required to pass by law, or to affect any variation in 
the terms of the Zoning Ordinance. 

 

Section 2 

 

A member shall disqualify himself or herself from participation in discussing a matter or voting on a 

matter in which he or she has a conflict of interest. Failure of a member to disqualify himself or herself 

as outlined above when a conflict of interest exists may constitute malfeasance in office. 

 

The member shall exit the room when the case is called, and shall not return until a decision has been 

recorded. An alternate member may be called to sit for the regular member. Whenever possible, 

notification of a conflict shall be given to the Chairperson at least 72 hours prior to the hearing, and the 

Chairperson shall notify the Planning Staff so that an alternate may be requested to attend the meeting. 

 

Article VIII: Appeals 

Section 1 

All applications to the Board shall be made in writing on forms provided for that purpose. An application 

form may be obtained from the Planning Department. Appeals will be scheduled for hearing before the 

Board upon receipt of a completed application and supporting documentation and information required 

to be provided with the application. The application shall be accompanied by such fee as established by 

the Township Board. 

 

Section 2 

 

An appeal shall be made by the applicant within forty-five (45) days from the date of order, refusal of 

permit, requirement, or determination of such department from which the appeal is taken. The Board 

may, in exceptional cases, for good reason grant additional time to file an appeal. 

 

Section 3 

 

Applications of appeals for interpretation, variance, or appeal of an administrative decision pursuant 

to the requirements of the zoning ordinance shall be made in the name of the property owner or by a 

person or persons having a substantial interest or rights in the property affected. An applicant may 

appear on his or her own behalf or may be represented by an attorney or agent at the hearing. Failure 

to appear will not necessarily deter action of the Board. 

 

Section 4 

 

The Planning Department may require of the applicant additional information and/or data deemed 

essential to fully advise the Board of the circumstances relative to the request. Refusal or failure to 

comply shall be grounds for dismissal of the application by the Board. 



6  

 

 

 

 

Section 5 

 

An appeal of any administrative order, requirement, decision, or determination stays all 

proceedings in furtherance of the action appealed unless the Planning Department, body, or officer 

certifies to the Board that, by reason of facts stated in the certificate, a stay would cause imminent 

peril to life or property, in which case proceedings shall not be stayed other than by a restraining 

order which may be granted by the Board or by the circuit court. 

 

Section 6 

 

The Board shall not be bound by strict rules of evidence and it may exclude irrelevant, immaterial, 

incompetent, or unduly repetitious testimony or evidence. 

 

Article IX: Notice of Hearing 

 

Notice of public hearings, including date, time, place, and purpose shall be made in conformance 

with applicable statutes and ordinances, including the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act (Act 110 of 

2006 as amended) and Article 7, Section 35 of Zoning Ordinance No. 58 of the Charter Township 

of White Lake. 

   

Article X: Procedure of Hearing 

Section 1 

The order of procedure of hearing shall be: 

 

1. Presentation of the proponent's request by the Chairperson 

2. Administrative official's presentation and/or recommendation 

3 Proponent's presentation of his or her case 

4 Board members questions to the proponent. 

5 Open public hearing: Interested persons in support 

    Interested persons in opposition 

6 Close public hearing 

7. Proponent has opportunity to answer to any remarks made by the public. 

8. Board Members’ questions, discussion and deliberations. 

   

In the conduct of a hearing, all comments shall be directed to the Chairperson. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



7  

 

 

 

Section 2 

 

The petitioner shall limit his/her remarks to ten minutes. 

 

If the petitioner has a spokesperson, that person may make the main presentation and 

the petitioner may also speak, but both speakers shall not exceed the time limit of this 

rule without permission from the Chairperson. 

 

Any member of the public wishing to address the Board during the public hearing shall 

fill out a card giving his/her name, address, and item he/she wishes to discuss. 

 

The general public shall limit his/her remarks to three minutes each. Speakers shall not 

exceed the time limit of this rule without permission from the Chairperson. 

 

Any person speaking on behalf of a group shall limit his/her remarks to five minutes, 

provided that those represented not speak individually. 

 

No person other than a Board member shall be allowed to address an issue following 

the closing of the public hearing by the Chairperson. 

 

 

The Chairperson shall instruct the petitioner or those who wish to speak during the 

public hearing to sum up their remarks when the Chairperson or Board Members feel 

that he/she has strayed from the pertinent facts, has become repetitive, or disrespectful 

to the Board. 

 

 

Section 3 

 

Motions 

 

All motions shall be restated by the Chairperson before a vote is taken.  

The name of the maker and supporter of the motion shall be recorded. 

An affirmative vote of the majority of the Board members present for the conduct of 

business shall be required for the approval of any requested action or motion placed 

before the Board. 

 

Roll call votes shall be required for all votes made by the Board. 



8  

 

 

 

Roll call votes shall be conducted in alphabetical order. The first such vote during the 

meeting shall begin with the first name alphabetically; the second vote shall begin with 

the second name alphabetically, and so forth. The Chairperson shall always cast the 

final vote. 

 

Any member of the Board shall be excused from discussing or voting on any issue in 

which that member has a financial interest other than the common public interest. 

 

Any member of the Board shall be excused from voting on any issue concerning that 

member's conduct. 

 

On all other issues, each member who is present is required to vote unless excused by 

the unanimous consent of the remaining members present. 

 

Section 4 

 

Minutes 

 

The Board minutes shall be prepared by the Planning Department or their designee, approved by 

the Board, and be available to the public. Minutes of closed sessions shall be maintained separately 

and not disclosed to the public, except upon court order.  

 

The minutes shall contain the following: 

 

1. A synopsis of the meeting. 

2. A complete restatement of all motions. 

3. Points of consideration. 

4. A record of the outcome of the Board votes, and the basis for such votes. 

5. A complete statement of the conditions or recommendations made on any 

action. 

6. A record of attendance. 

 

ARTICLE XI: Disposition of Appeal 

Section 1 

The Board may reverse, affirm, vary or modify any order, requirement, decision, or determination as in 

its opinion should be made, and to that end shall have all the powers of the officer from whom the 

appeal is taken. 

 

Section 2 

 

The final decision shall be in writing. The motion which decides the issue shall be in the form of a 

statement or resolution reciting the findings of facts and shall state the reasons for the findings as well as 

the conclusion and any conditions of approval imposed by the Board. 



 

 

 

 

 

Section 3 

 

Any applicant may, with the consent of the Board , withdraw his/her application at any time prior to final 

action thereon. 

 

Section 4 

 

Failure of an applicant or a subsequent owner of the property in question to comply with the terms of any 

decision, including any conditions imposed thereunder, shall be in violation of the Zoning Ordinance and 

such terms and penalties thereunder may be enforced to halt such violation. 

 

Section 5 

 

No order of the Board permitting the erection or alteration of a building shall be valid for a period longer 

than six (6) months from the date of approval, unless a building permit for such erection or alteration is 

obtained within such period, and such erection and alteration is started and proceeds to completion in 

accordance with the terms of such permit. 

 

No order of the Board permitting a use of a building or premises shall be valid for a period longer than 

six (6) months from the date of approval, unless such use is established within such period; provided, 

however, that where such use permitted is dependent upon the erection or alteration of a building, such 

order shall continue in force and effect if a building permit for said erection or alteration is obtained 

within such period, and such erection or alteration is started and  proceeds to completion in accordance 

with the terms of such permit. 

 

Section 6 

 

A file containing materials and decisions in relation to each case shall be kept by the Planning 

Department as part of the record of the Board . All records shall be of public record. 

 

Section 7 

 

All violations shall be corrected within a reasonable time period, as determined by the Board, not to 

exceed six (6) months, as the Board may permit upon application. A violation not corrected within 

the specified time period shall be reported to the Township Attorney. 

 

Article XII: Amendment and Suspension of Bylaws 

Section 1 

These bylaws may be amended at any regular meeting upon an affirmative vote of a majority of the 

total membership of the Board. 

 

Section 2 

 

A bylaw may be suspended upon an affirmative vote of a majority of the total membership of the Board, 

provided said action is in accordance with established state or federal law, Township ordinance, and 

parliamentary authority. 

 

The foregoing rules and regulations are hereby adopted by the Zoning Board of Appeals for the 

Charter Township of White Lake on -------- 

 



WHITE LAKE TOWNSHIP 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

 

REPORT OF THE  
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT  

 
 
TO:  Zoning Board of Appeals 
 
FROM: Justin Quagliata, Staff Planner 
 
DATE: January 28, 2021 
 
RE:  Election of Chair and Vice-Chair 
 
 
The Zoning Board of Appeals bylaws require that at the first regular meeting each 
calendar year the Board must select from its members a Chair and Vice-Chair. In 
accordance with Article 7, Section 32.B of the zoning ordinance, an elected official of the 
Township cannot serve as chair or vice-chair of the Zoning Board of Appeals. The 
general duties of each position are as follows:  
 
Chair: The chair shall preside at all meetings, authorize calls for special meetings, and 
perform such other duties as may be specified by the Zoning Board of Appeals.  
 
Vice-Chair: The vice-chair shall act in the capacity of the chair in the chair’s absence. In 
the event the office of the chair becomes vacant, the vice-chair shall succeed to this office 
for the unexpired term.  
 
At the meeting on January 28, 2021 the current chair will request nominations for the 
officer positions listed above. Once nominations are made the Zoning Board of Appeals 
will vote on each office. The Board member receiving the most votes will serve in that 
position. The elected officer will begin serving immediately after being selected and will 
remain in office for the remainder of the year. Current officers may be re-elected, 
pending a bylaw amendment being considered at the January 28 meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Zoning Board of Appeals 
Survey Requirement 

 
RESOLUTION 

 
At a regular meeting of the Zoning Board of Appeals of the Charter Township of White Lake, 

Oakland County, Michigan, held virtually via Zoom on the 28th day of January, 2021 at 7:00 p.m. 
 

PRESENT:                                                                                                                                                                           
      
                                                                                                                                                                               
 
ABSENT:                                                                                                                                                                              
 
 The following resolution was offered by                                   and supported by                                  . 
 
 WHEREAS, the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act confers upon a Zoning Board of Appeals powers such 
as, but not limited to, deciding appeals of an administrative official’s decision, granting variances from 
standards of the zoning ordinance, and interpreting the provisions of the zoning ordinance; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Article 7, Section 38 of the zoning ordinance authorizes the Zoning Board of Appeals 
to compel testimony, require appellants to prepare and submit all necessary surveys, plans or other 
information necessary for the Zoning Board of Appeals to investigate the matters before it; and 
 
 WHEREAS, currently a survey is not required to file a variance application with the Planning 
Department; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Zoning Board of Appeals discussed requiring a survey for variance applications at 
its special meeting on October 15, 2020 and its regular meeting on October 22, 2020; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in order to thoroughly consider variance requests the Zoning Board of Appeals 
determined a survey is necessary to verify the shape and dimension of the property, the location of all 
existing and proposed structures, and building-to-building and building-to-property line relationships. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS OF THE CHARTER 
TOWNSHIP OF WHITE LAKE, OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN as follows: 
 

1. Pursuant to Article 7, Section 38 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Zoning Board of Appeals 
requires all appellants requesting a variance on nonconforming lots or a variance on 
nonconforming buildings/structures to provide a certified survey prepared by a registered 
land surveyor, as defined in Article 2, Section 2 of the Zoning Ordinance, upon submission of 
an application to the Township. 

 
2. The Zoning Board of Appeals authorizes the Planning Department to grant a waiver from the 

survey requirement at its discretion.   
 

3. The Zoning Board of Appeals reserves the right to modify the survey requirement in the 
future. 



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that effective immediately the Planning Department of the Charter 
Township of White Lake is directed to administer the survey requirement.  
 
 
ADOPTED: YEAS:                                                                                                                                                  
 
  NAYS:                                                                                                                                                  
 
 
 I, the undersigned, the duly qualified Chairman of the Zoning Board of Appeals of the Charter 
Township of White Lake, Oakland County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and 
complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Zoning Board of Appeals held on the 
28th day of January 2021. 
 
 
                                                                
        Josephine Spencer  
        Zoning Board of Appeals Chair 
 
 


	6a 8834 Arlington.pdf
	12-13-176-002 (8834 Arlington) Snapp.2.pdf
	WHITE LAKE TOWNSHIP
	ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
	REPORT OF THE
	COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
	FROM: Justin Quagliata, Staff Planner
	Agenda item: 6a
	Appeal Date: January 28, 2021 (Tabled from December 17, 2020)

	20210121160034997.pdf
	8834 Arlington - attachment 2 (002).pdf
	20210121160034997

	6b 10199 Lakeside.pdf
	12-22-477-011 (10199 Lakeside) MJ Whelan Construction.3.pdf
	WHITE LAKE TOWNSHIP
	ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
	REPORT OF THE
	COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
	FROM: Justin Quagliata, Staff Planner
	Agenda item: 6b
	Appeal Date: January 28, 2021 (Tabled from December 10, 2020)

	6b 10199 Lakeside.pdf
	Pages from 10199 Lakeside.pdf
	Pages from 10199 Lakeside-2.pdf
	Binder1.pdf
	Image_20210121_0001
	Image_20210121_0002
	Image_20210121_0003
	Image_20210121_0004
	Image_20210121_0005

	Pages from 10199 Lakeside-3.pdf
	Pages from 10199 Lakeside-4.pdf


	6c 2115 Haley.pdf
	12-16-401-024 (2115 Haley) Elliot.pdf
	WHITE LAKE TOWNSHIP
	ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
	REPORT OF THE
	COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
	FROM: Justin Quagliata, Staff Planner
	Agenda item: 6c
	Appeal Date: January 28, 2021

	20210120162053813.pdf

	6d 9178 Highland.pdf
	12-23-226-005 (9178 Highland) Metro Detroit Signs.pdf
	WHITE LAKE TOWNSHIP
	ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
	REPORT OF THE
	COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
	FROM: Justin Quagliata, Staff Planner
	Agenda item: 6d
	Appeal Date: January 28, 2021

	20210121092517979.pdf

	6e 8884 Cooley Lake.pdf
	6e 8884 Cooley Lake.pdf
	12-36-351-027 (8884 Cooley Lake) Stanecki.pdf
	WHITE LAKE TOWNSHIP
	ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
	REPORT OF THE
	COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
	FROM: Justin Quagliata, Staff Planner
	Agenda item: 6e
	Appeal Date: January 28, 2021

	6e 8884 Cooley Lake.pdf

	20210121164959802.pdf
	6e 8884 Cooley Lake

	6f 408 Burgess.pdf
	12-27-427-004 (408 Burgess) Slicker.pdf
	WHITE LAKE TOWNSHIP
	ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
	REPORT OF THE
	COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
	FROM: Justin Quagliata, Staff Planner
	Agenda item: 6f
	Appeal Date: January 28, 2021

	6f 408 Burgess.pdf
	20210121151334464.pdf


	7a Bylaw Amendments.pdf
	bylaw amendments.pdf
	WHITE LAKE TOWNSHIP
	ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
	REPORT OF THE
	COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
	FROM: Justin Quagliata, Staff Planner

	White Lake Township ZBA Bylaws redline.pdf
	clean copy of amended bylaws.pdf

	7b 2021 election of officers.pdf
	WHITE LAKE TOWNSHIP
	ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
	REPORT OF THE
	COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
	FROM: Justin Quagliata, Staff Planner

	7c ZBA survey requirement resolution.pdf



